
 
 

1955 Lakeway Dr., # 260, Lewisville, Texas 75057 
972.221.4600 │ RideDCTA.net 

 
Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

October 25, 2018 │ 3:00 p.m. 
*or immediately following Board Work Session 
scheduled at 1:30 p.m. on October 25, 2018 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO US AND TEXAS FLAGS 
 
INVOCATION 
 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION OF VISITORS 
 
AGENCY AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This agenda item provides an opportunity for citizens to address the Board of Directors on any 
agenda items or other matters relating to the DCTA. Anyone wishing to address the Board of 
Directors should complete a Citizen Comment Registration Card and submit it to the DCTA 
Administration prior to the start of the Board of Director meeting. There is a three (3) minute time 
limit for each citizen. Anyone wishing to speak shall be courteous and cordial. The Board of 
Directors is not permitted to take action on any subject raised by a speaker during Citizen 
Comments. However, the Board of Directors may have the item placed on a future agenda for 
action; refer the item to the DCTA Administration for further study or action; briefly state existing 
DCTA policy; or provide a brief statement of factual information in response to the inquiry. 
  

2. CONSENT AGENDA 
a. Approval of Minutes for the Board Work Session and Regular Meeting on September 

27, 2018.  
b. Acceptance of Monthly Financial Statements – September 2018 
c. Acceptance of Quarterly Investment Report – Q4 FY2018 

 
3. REGULAR AGENDA 

a. Approval of Resolution R18-09 adopting the updated Title VI Policy Statement  
b. Approval of Resolution 18-08 Approving Financial Management Policies and Annual 

Investment Policy for FY2019 
c. Approval to award for Construction of the Bike and Pedestrian Trail-Eagle Point 

Section to Northstar Construction, LLC  
d. Approval of Task Order to Jacobs Engineering Group for Bike and Pedestrian Trail-

Eagle Point Section 
e. Discussion of Board Governance Training for DCTA Board Members  

 
 
 



 
4. Convene Executive Session. The Board may convene the Regular Board Meeting into Closed 

Executive Session for the following: 
a. As Authorized by Section 551.071(2) of the Texas Government Code, the Regular 

Board Meeting may be Convened into Closed Executive Session for the Purpose of 
Seeking Confidential Legal Advice from the General Counsel on any Agenda Item 
Listed Herein. 

b. As Authorized by Texas Government Code Section 551.072 Deliberation regarding 
Real Property:  Discuss acquisition, sale or lease of real property related to long-range 
service plan within the cities of Denton, Lewisville, Highland Village, or the A-train 
corridor. 

 
5. Reconvene Open Session 

a. Reconvene and Take Necessary Action on Items Discussed during Executive Session. 
 

6. CHAIR REPORT 
a. Discussion of Regional Transportation Issues  
b. Discussion Legislative Issues 

i. Regional 
ii. State 
iii. Federal  

 
7. CEO’S REPORT 

a. Budget Transfers 
b. Regional Transportation Issues 
c. Year of Change 

 
8. REPORT ON ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 

a. Pursuant to Texas Government Section 551.0415 the Board of Directors may report on 
following items: (1) expression of thanks, congratulations, or condolences; (2) 
information about holiday schedules; (3) recognition of individuals; (4) reminders about 
upcoming DCTA and Member City events; (5) information about community events; 
and (6) announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 

 
9. ADJOURN 

 
Chair – Charles Emery 

Vice Chair – Richard Huckaby 
Secretary – Dianne Costa 
Treasurer – Dave Kovatch

Members – Skip Kalb, Tom Winterburn, Don Hartman,  
George A. Campbell, Allen Harris, Carter Wilson, Connie White, Mark Miller, Ron Trees 

CEO – Raymond Suarez 
 
 

The Denton County Transportation Authority meeting rooms are wheelchair accessible. Access to the building and special parking are 
available at the main entrance. Requests for sign interpreters or special services must be received forty-eight (48) hours prior to the 
meeting time by emailing bpedron@dcta.net or calling Brandy Pedron at 972-221-4600. 
 
This notice was posted on 10/19/2018 at 4:20 PM. 
 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Brandy Pedron, Executive Administrator | Open Records
 



RM 2(a) 
 

 
 

Board of Directors  
 

Work Session Minutes 
 

The Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority convened the 
work session of the Board of Directors with Charles Emery, Chairman presiding at  
on September 27, 2018 at 1955 Lakeway Drive, Suite 260, Lewisville, Texas 75057.  
 
 

Attendance 
 

Small Cities 
Connie White 
Skip Kalb, Small Cities 
 
Large Cities 
Charles Emery, Lewisville, Chairman 
Dianne Costa, Highland Village 
Carter Wilson, Frisco (at 1:45) 
Tom Winterburn, Corinth 
Ron Trees, Little Elm 
Allen Harris, The Colony 
 
Denton County Unincorporated 
Don Hartman 
George Campbell 
Dave Kovatch, Denton County At Large, 

Treasurer 
 
Board Members Absent 
Richard Huckaby, Denton, Secretary 
Mark Miller, Flower Mound 
 
Legal Counsel 
Pete Smith  
 

DCTA Staff  
Kristina Holcomb, Deputy Chief Executive 

Officer 
Marisa Perry, Chief Financial Officer, VP of 

Finance 
Nicole Recker, VP Marketing & 

Communications 
 
Other Attendees 
Lindsey Baker, Director Strategic 

Partnerships 
Michelle Bloomer, Assistant VP Bus 

Operations & Maintenance 
Amanda Riddle, Budget Manger 
Amber Karkauskas, Controller 
Jonah Katz, Senior Planner 
Ann Boulden, Senior Project Manager 
Adrienne Hamilton, Communications 

Manager 
Chrissy Nguyen, Senior Accountant 
Javier Trilla, Senior IT Manager 
Ian Bryant, HNTB 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Chairman, Charles Emery, called the meeting to order and announced the presence of 
a quorum at 1:30 p.m.  
 



   

1. Routine Briefing Items 
a. Staff Briefing on Monthly Financial Reports – Marisa Perry, Chief Financial 

Officer, VP of Finance, reported on the following: 
i. Monthly Financial Statements for August 2018  
ii. Capital Projects Budget Report for August 2018  
iii. Monthly Sales Tax Receipts 
iv. Current Procurement Activities 
-   Kristina Holcomb, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, briefly discussed 
TTI Study. Marisa Perry, Chief Financial Officer/VP Finance, added that 
DCTA will have a plan around mid FY19. 
-   Charles Emery, Board Chairman, gave mention to PTC funding from 
North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG), beyond the 
Chrissy Grant. He noted that there is a NCTCOG meeting scheduled for 
September 28, 2018 to look at funding opportunities.  

 
b. Marketing and Communications – Nicole Recker, VP Marketing and 

Communications, reported on the following: 
i. New Handouts 
ii. UNT Orientation Activities Recap – 22 orientations and over 2,000 

students with in depth face-to-face conversations 
iii. Highland Village Balloon Festival Recap 
iv. State Fair of Texas Campaign Overview – different fare promotion this 

year 
v. Monthly Media Report (August 2018) 

 
c. Strategic Planning and Development – Lindsey Baker, Director of Strategic 

Partnerships, reported on the following: 
i. Regional Planning Initiatives Update 
ii. Local Planning Update – Stakeholder forum 
iii. Business Development and Partnerships Update – extending services 

to Flower Mound medical/seniors, Coppell similar service to Alliance 
iv. Funding Opportunities Update  
v. Land Use Planning & Development  

 
d. Capital Projects – Kristina Holcomb, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, 

reported on the following projects: 
i. Positive Train Control  
ii. Hike and Bike Trail – Eagle Point Section 
iii. Lewisville Bus Fueling Facility  
iv. Brownfield Investigation -  final report in October 

 
e. Transit Operations Reports – Michelle Bloomer, Assistant VP Bus 

Operations & Maintenance, reported on the following and gave an update on 
ridership: 

i. Bus and Rail Operations – System On-Time Performance, Ridership 
Performance, Boardings, Safety & Security, Maintenance 

 



   

2. Committee Chair Reports 
a. Program Services Committee report of items discussed at the September 18, 

2018 meeting with Dave Kovatch as committee Chairman – Dave Kovatch, 
Committee Chairman, reviewed and discussed the Chair report provided in 
the Board Packet  

 
3. Discussion of Regular Board Meeting Agenda Items (September 27, 2018) – No 

discussion at this time  
 

4. Convene Executive Session – The board did not meet in Executive Session 
 

5. Discussion of Future Agenda Items  
-   Charles Emery, Board Chairman, stated that Executive Committee still stands as 
the Legislative Committee; at the next executive committee, the Board may discuss 
legislature 
-   Dianne Costa, Board Secretary, discussed having a Board Governance 
Facilitation before the February Board Retreat; this will be discussed at the next 
Executive Committee.  

 
6. ADJOURN at 2:33 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
The minutes of the September 27, 2018 Work Session meeting of the Board of 
Directors were passed and approved by a vote on this 25th day of October 2018. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Charles Emery, Chairman 
 

ATTEST 
 
_____________________________________ 
Dianne Costa, Secretary 



RM 2(a) 
 

   

 
 

Board of Directors 
 

Board Meeting Minutes 
 

The Board of Directors of the Denton County Transportation Authority convened the 
regular meeting of the Board of Directors with Charles Emery, Chairman presiding at  
on September 27, 2018 at 1955 Lakeway Drive, Suite 260, Lewisville, Texas 75057.  
 
 

Attendance 
 

Small Cities 
Connie White 
Skip Kalb, Small Cities 
 
Large Cities 
Charles Emery, Lewisville, Chairman 
Dianne Costa, Highland Village 
Carter Wilson, Frisco (at 1:45) 
Tom Winterburn, Corinth 
Ron Trees, Little Elm 
Allen Harris, The Colony 
 
Denton County Unincorporated 
George Campbell 
Dave Kovatch, Denton County At Large, 

Treasurer 
 
Board Members Absent 
Richard Huckaby, Denton, Secretary 
Mark Miller, Flower Mound 
Don Hartman, Denton County 

Unincorporated 

Legal Counsel 
Pete Smith  
 
DCTA Staff  
Kristina Holcomb, Deputy Chief Executive 

Officer 
Marisa Perry, Chief Financial Officer, VP of 

Finance 
Nicole Recker, VP Marketing & 

Communications 
 
Other Attendees 
Lindsey Baker, Director Strategic 

Partnerships 
Michelle Bloomer, Assistant VP Bus 

Operations & Maintenance 
Amber Karkauskas, Controller 
Ian Bryant, HNTB 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Chairman, Charles Emery, called the meeting to order and announced 
the presence of a quorum at 2:55 p.m. 
 
 



 

   

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO US AND TEXAS FLAGS – led by Connie White 
 
INVOCATION – led by Skip Kalb 
 
AGENCY AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS – none to present at this time  
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT – no public comments at this time 
This agenda item provides an opportunity for citizens to address the Board of Directors 
on any agenda items or other matters relating to the DCTA. Anyone wishing to address 
the Board of Directors should complete a Citizen Comment Registration Card and 
submit it to the DCTA Administration prior to the start of the Board of Director meeting. 
There is a three (3) minute time limit for each citizen. Anyone wishing to speak shall be 
courteous and cordial. The Board of Directors is not permitted to take action on any 
subject raised by a speaker during Citizen Comments. However, the Board of Directors 
may have the item placed on a future agenda for action; refer the item to the DCTA 
Administration for further study or action; briefly state existing DCTA policy; or provide 
a brief statement of factual information in response to the inquiry.  

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Approval of Minutes for the Board Work Session and Regular Meeting on August 
23, 2018 

b. Acceptance of Monthly Financial Statements for August 2018 
c. Approval and Authorization to execute interlocal contract with the Department of 

Information Services 
- A Motion to approve the Consent Agenda items a - c was made by Allen 

Harris. The motion was seconded by Carter Wilson. Motion passed 
unanimously by the Board.   

 
3. REGULAR AGENDA 

a. Approval of Resolution 18-06 adopting FY 2019 Operating and Capital Budget 
- A Motion to approve the Regular Agenda items a was made by Dave 

Kovatch. The motion was seconded by Skip Kalb. Motion passed 
unanimously by the Board.   

b. Approval of Resolution 18-07 designating Raymond Suarez as the Alternate 
Investment Officer 

- A Motion to approve the Regular Agenda items b was made by Connie 
White. The motion was seconded by Dave Kovatch. Motion passed 
unanimously by the Board.   

c. Approval and Authorization to execute agreement with Texas Transportation 
Institute  

- A Motion to approve the Regular Agenda items c was made by Dianne 
Costa. The motion was seconded by Carter Wilson. Motion passed 
unanimously by the Board.   

 
4. CONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION – The Board did not meet in Executive Session at 

this time  
 
 



 

   

 
5. CHAIR REPORT – Charles Emery briefly discussed the dinner with DART and Trinity 

Metro; Lindsey Baker, Director Strategic Partnerships, will start attending TRTC; and he 
and Raymond Suarez, CEO met with Allen Clark and Chris Phelps 

   
6. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

a. Budget Transfers – Marisa Perry, CFO, briefly discussed the Valley Ridge budget 
transfer: was part of the project and was not an operating expense, not capital   

b. Regional Transportation Issues – No discussion at this time   
 

7. REPORT ON ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST – Jim Cline, President, stated that 
there was positive feedback about DCTA in the community coming from Evergreen 

a. Pursuant to Texas Government Section 551.0415 the Board of Directors may 
report on following items: (1) expression of thanks, congratulations, or 
condolences; (2) information about holiday schedules; (3) recognition of 
individuals; (4) reminders about upcoming DCTA and Member City events; (5) 
information about community events; and (6) announcements involving imminent 
threat to public health and safety. 
 

8. ADJOURN – Adjourned at 3:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The minutes of the September 27, 2018 regular meeting of the Board of Directors were 
passed and approved by a vote on this 25th day of October 2018. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
Charles Emery, Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST 
 
_____________________________________ 
Dianne Costa, Secretary 





1 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-09 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DENTON COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (“DCTA”) APPROVING UPDATED TITLE VI 
POLICY STATEMENT; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Denton County Transportation Authority, as a recipient of federal funds, has 
been required to comply with Federal Transit Administration Circular 4702.1A and Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 and its related regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the DCTA has developed a Title VI Policy in accordance with FTA Circular 
4702.1A as amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes prohibit discrimination 
on the basis of race, religion, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability; and  
 
WHEREAS, the DCTA, as a recipient of federal financial assistance and a Federal Transit 
Administration designated recipient, is required to comply with Title VI requirements which 
include review and approval of a Title VI Nondiscrimination Program every three (3) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, the DCTA is updating Title VI policies which will be included in the 2019 Title VI 
Program Update. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, THAT:  
 
SECTION 1.  The Denton County Transportation Authority Board of Directors hereby approves 
the update to the Title VI Policy Statement attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, Update, the original of 
which shall be maintained in the office of the Deputy DCTA CEO and referenced by the date and 
number of this resolution. 
 
SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be transmitted to the Federal Transit Administration and other 
funding agencies as appropriate.  
 
SECTION 3. That all provisions of the resolutions of the Board of Directors of the DCTA, in 
conflict with the provisions of this resolution be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other 
provisions not in conflict with the provisions of this resolution shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 4.  This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DENTON 
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY THE 25TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2018. 
 



2 

APPROVED: 
 
 
        
Charles Emery, Chairman  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Dianne Costa, Secretary  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

  
Peter G. Smith, General Counsel  
(PGS:10-18-2018:TM 103475) 
  





Title VI Policy 2018 

 
 
 
 

DCTA’S TITLE VI POLICY STATEMENT 
 
The Denton County Transportation Authority (DCTA) is committed to ensuring that no person shall, on the 
grounds of race, color, or national origin, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Civil 
Rights Restoration Act of 1987 be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity, whether those programs or activities are federally 
funded or not. 
 
It is DCTA’s objective to: 
 

• Ensure that the level and quality of transportation service is provided without regard to race, color 
or national origin; 
 

• Identify and address, as appropriate, disproportionately high and adverse human health and 
environmental effects, including social and economic effects of programs and activities on minority 
populations and low-income populations; 
 

• Promote the full and fair participation of all affected populations in transportation decision making 
including encouraging participation by affected populations on policy making boards and 
committees; 
 

• Prevent the denial, reduction or delay in benefits related to programs and activities that benefit 
minority populations or low-income populations; and 
 

• Ensure meaningful access to programs and activities by persons with limited English proficiency 
(LEP). 
 

The DCTA Board of Directors, president, executive management, and all direct and indirect employees 
share the responsibility for carrying out DCTA’s commitment to Title VI. 

 
DEFINITIONS 
 
The following definitions shall be used for the purposes of implementing the policies and programs 
associated with Title VI compliance 
 
Contract Services – DCTA facilitated services provided under an agreement and/or contract to provide 
services for a designated group or purpose. 
 
Demand Response Service - Any non-fixed route service transporting individuals that requires advanced 
scheduling. An advance request for service is a key characteristic of demand response service.  
 
Designated Recipient – The Denton County Transportation Authority is the designated recipient for federal 
funds contributing to transit system capital programs and operations in the Denton/Lewisville Urbanized 
Area. 
 
Discrimination – Any action or inaction, whether intentional or unintentional, in any program or activity of a 
Federal aid recipient, subrecipient, or contractor that results in disparate treatment, disparate impact, or 
perpetuating the effects of prior discrimination based on race, color, or national origin. 



Title VI Policy 2018 

 
Disparate Impact – A facially neutral policy or practice that disproportionately affects members of a group 
identified by race, color, or national origin, where the recipient’s policy or practice lacks a substantial 
legitimate justification and where there exists one or more alternatives that would serve the same legitimate 
objectives but with less disproportionate effect on the basis of race, color, or national origin. 
 
Disparate Treatment – Actions that result in circumstances where similarly situated persons are intentionally 
treated differently (i.e., less favorably) than others because of their race, color, or national origin. 
 
Disproportionate Burden - A neutral policy or practice that disproportionately affects low-income populations 
more than non-low-income populations. A finding of disproportionate burden requires the recipient to 
evaluate alternatives and mitigate burdens where practicable. 
 
Commuter Service – Includes limited stop bus and rail services. 
 
Fixed Guideway – A public transportation facility using and occupying a separate right of- way for the 
exclusive use of public transportation; using rail; using a fixed catenary system; for a passenger ferry 
system; or for a bus rapid transit system. 
 
Fixed Route - Public transportation service provided in vehicles operated along predetermined routes 
according to a fixed schedule. 
 
Limited English Proficient (LEP) - Persons for whom English is not their primary language and who have a 
limited ability to read, write, speak or understand English. It includes people who reported to the U.S. 
Census that they speak English less than very well, not well, or not at all. 
 
Local Transit Service – Includes local fixed-route, local circulator/shuttle bus services and demand 
response bus services including Connect, Access, Connect RSVP and UNT Shuttle. 
 
Low-income Populations & Areas – Low-income populations are those persons with an income of 80 
percent or less of the national per capita income. “Low-income Areas” are residential land use areas within 
census tracts where the average per capita income is 80 percent or less of the national per capita income. 
 
Minority Persons – Include those persons who self-identify themselves as being one or more of the following 
ethnic groups: American Indian and Alaska Native, Asian, Black or African American, Hispanic or Latino, 
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander, as defined in the FTA Title VI Circular. 
 
Minority Population – Any readily identifiable group of minority persons who live in geographic proximity 
and, if circumstances warrant, geographically dispersed/transient populations (such as migrant workers or 
Native Americans) who will be similarly affected by a proposed DOT program, policy, or activity. 
 
“Minority Areas” - Residential land use areas within Census tracts where the percentage of minority persons 
is higher than DCTA’s service area average. 
 
National Origin - The particular nation in which a person was born, or where the person’s parents or 
ancestors were born. 
 
Noncompliance - A FTA determination that the recipient is not in compliance with the DOT Title VI 
regulations and has engaged in activities that have had the purpose or effect of denying persons the 
benefits of, excluding from participation in, or subjecting persons to discrimination in the recipient’s program 
or activity on the basis of race, color, or national origin. 
 
Route-Level – Refers to the geographic level of analysis at the route alignment level by which the 
performance of a transit route is measured for equity. 
 



Title VI Policy 2018 

Route-Service Area – A three-quarter mile radial buffer on either side of a transit route’s alignment. A three-
quarter mile radial buffer is used to ensure compliance with the American’s with Disabilities Act guidelines. 
 
Service Level – Refers to the span of service (hours of operation), days of operation, trips, and headways 
(service frequencies) for a transit route or the regional transit system. 
 
Service Area – Refers either to the geographic area in which a transit agency is authorized by its charter to 
provide service to the public, or to the planning area of a State Department of Transportation or Metropolitan 
Planning Organization.” 
Service Span – The span of hours over which service is operated (e.g., 6 a.m. to 10 p.m.). The service 
span may vary by weekday or Saturday. 
 
System-wide – The scope of DCTA’s Title VI service standards and policies – these standards and policies 
are in affect for all DCTA services, actions, and operations. 
 
Title VI Program - The documentation demonstrating DCTA’s compliance with Title VI requirements. The 
program must be approved by the DCTA Board of Directors and submitted to FTA every three years. 
 
Transit System – A coordinated urban network of scheduled public passenger modes including fixed-route 
local and express buses, light rail transit, bus rapid transit, and circulator bus services that provide mobility 
for people from one place to another. 
 
SERVICE EQUITY POLICIES 
 
Purpose of the Policy 
 
The purpose of the Service Equity Policy is to define thresholds for determining major service changes and 
whether potential changes to existing transit services will have a disparate impact based on race, color or 
national origin, or whether potential service changes will have a disproportionally high or adverse impact 
on minority populations. 
 
Basis for Policy Standards 
 
Federal law requires the Denton County Transportation Authority to evaluate changes to transit services, 
as outlined in FTA Circular 4702.1B, effective October 1, 2012. In order to comply with 49 CFR Section 
21.5(b)(a) and Appendix C to 49 CFR part 21, recipients shall “evaluate significant system-wide service 
and fare changes and proposed improvements at the planning and programming stages to determine 
whether those changes have a discriminatory impact. For service changes, this requirement applies to 
major service changes only. The recipient should have established guidelines or thresholds for what it 
considers a major change to be. This requirement applies to all changes in fare structure, price and type 
unless temporary in nature as noted under Exemptions. 
 

A. Major Service Change Policy 
 
According to DCTA, a major service change is a change that results in one or more of the following 
conditions (unless otherwise noted under Exemptions) and will be evaluated in accordance with the 
regulatory requirements set forth in FTA Circular 4702.1B: 

 
i. The establishment or elimination of a fixed bus route. 

ii. A substantial geographical alteration on a given route of more than 25 percent of its revenue 
miles. 

iii. A modification which causes a change in the number of daily revenue hours provided that is 
equivalent to a 25 percent or greater increase or decrease of the original daily hours provided. 

  



Title VI Policy 2018 

B. Disparate Impact Policy  
 

DCTA establishes that a fare change, major service change, or other policy results in a disparate 
impact if the minority populations will experience five (5) percent more of the cumulative burden, or 
experience five (5) percent less of the cumulative benefit, relative to the non-minority populations. To 
avoid, minimize, or mitigate disparate impacts, DCTA will develop and assess alternatives and/or 
modifications to proposed changes that will result in adverse impacts.  

 
DCTA will implement alternatives or modifications to proposed changes to address adverse impacts 
unless: 

 
i. There is substantial legitimate justification for the change, and 

ii. No other alternatives exist that would serve the same legitimate objectives but with less 
disproportionate effects on the basis of race, color or national origin. 

 
C. Fare Change Policy 

 
A fare equity analysis will be conducted whenever the Authority implements a fare change, regardless 
of the amount of increase or decrease, except for those changes identified as exceptions in FTA 
Circular 4702.1B. A fare change is defined as an increase or decrease in fares: 
 

i. On the entire system, 

ii. On certain transit modes, or 

iii. By fare payment type or fare media. 

 
D. Disproportionate Burden Policy  

 
DCTA establishes that a fare change, major service change, or other policy results in a 
disproportionate burden if low-income populations will experience five (5) percent more of the 
cumulative burden, or experience five (5) percent less of the cumulative benefit, relative to non-low-
income populations unless the disproportionate effects are mitigated. 

 
E. New Starts or New Fixed Guideway System (Service Equity Analysis) 

 
i. A service and fare equity analysis will be conducted six months prior to the beginning of 

revenue operations, whether or not the proposed changes to existing service rise to the level 
of “major service change” as defined above. All proposed changes to parallel or connecting 
service will also be examined. 

ii. If an entity other than DCTA builds the project but DCTA will operate the service once complete, 
DCTA is responsible for the analysis. 

iii. The analysis will compare pre and post project service levels and shall determine based on the 
methods identified above if the service changed proposed due to the capital project will result 
in a disparate impact on minority populations and/or a disproportionate impact on low-income 
populations. 

iv. A fare equity analysis is required for any and all fares that will change as a result of the capital 
project. 

F. When a Major Service or Fare Change is Deemed to Have a Disparate Impact and/or 
Disproportionate Burden 

 
i. Avoid, Minimize, or Mitigate Impact and/or Burden: If a proposed major service change or fare 

change is deemed to have a disparate impact and/or disproportionate burden, the Authority 



Title VI Policy 2018 

shall consider modifying the proposed changes in order to avoid, minimize or mitigate the 
disparate impact(s) or disproportionate burden(s) of the proposed change. Any modifications 
to the proposed change must be reanalyzed according to the policies to determine whether 
the proposed change removed the disparate impacts and/or disproportionate burdens of the 
change. 

ii. No Alterations or Unable to Remove Impact and/or Burden: If the Authority chooses not to 
alter the proposed major service or fare change, or if modifications to the proposed major 
service or fare change do not remove the disparate impact(s) or disproportionate burden(s), 
the following steps must be taken: 

a. If the Authority chooses not to alter the proposed major service or fare change, or if 
modifications to the proposed major service or fare change do not remove the disparate 
impact, the Authority may implement the major service or fare change only if: 

i. The Authority has a substantial legitimate justification for the proposed service or 
fare change, and 

ii. The Authority can show that there are no alternatives that would have a smaller 
disparate impact on minority riders that would still accomplish the Authority’s 
legitimate program goals. 

b. If the Authority chooses not to alter the proposed major service change or fare change, or 
if modifications to the proposed major service change or fare change do not remove the 
disproportionate burden on low-income riders; the Authority shall take steps to avoid, 
minimize, or mitigate those impacts where practicable, and the Authority should describe 
alternative service and/or fares available to low income customers. 

 
Exemptions 
 
The major service change thresholds exclude any changes to service that are caused by the following: 
 

i. Discontinuance of Temporary or Demonstration Services – The discontinuance of a temporary 
transit service or demonstration service that has been in effect for less than one year. If a temporary 
service addition or change lasts longer than twelve months, then FTA considers the service addition 
or change permanent and the transit provider must conduct a service equity analysis if the service 
otherwise qualifies as a major service change. 

ii. Natural or Catastrophic Disasters – Forces of nature such as earthquakes, wildfires, or other natural 
disasters, or human-caused catastrophic disasters that may force the suspension of scheduled 
transit service for public safety or technical reasons. 

iii. Auxiliary Transportation Infrastructure Failures – Failures of auxiliary transportation infrastructure 
such as vehicular bridges, highway bridge overpasses, tunnels, or elevated highways that force 
the suspension transit service. 

iv. Overlapping Services – A reduction in revenue miles on one line that is offset by an increase in 
revenue miles on the overlapping section of an alternative transit route (an overlapping section is 
where two or more bus routes or rail lines share the same alignment, stops, or stations for a short 
distance). 

v. Seasonal Service and Special Events – Changes to bus service levels on routes which occur 
because of seasonal ridership changes and event activities served by dedicated temporary bus 
routes or increased service frequencies. 

vi. Temporary Route Detours – A short-term change to a route caused by road construction, routine 
road maintenance, road closures, emergency road conditions, fiscal crisis, civil demonstrations, or 
any uncontrollable circumstance. 

vii. “Spare the air days” or other instances when a local municipality or transit agency has declared 
that all passengers ride free. 



Title VI Policy 2018 

viii. Temporary fare reductions that are mitigating measures for other actions. For example, 
construction activities may close a segment of a rail system for a period of time and require 
passengers to alter their travel patterns. A reduced fare for these impacted passengers is a 
mitigating measure and does not require a fare equity analysis. 

ix. Promotional fare reductions. If a promotional or temporary fare reduction lasts longer than six 
months, then FTA considers the fare reduction permanent and the transit provider must conduct a 
fare equity analysis. 

 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 
 
DCTA will integrate an analysis of impact to minority and low-income population into National Environmental 
Policy Act documentation of construction projects. When preparing documentation for a categorical 
exclusion (CE), the DCTA will meet this requirement by completing and submitting a standard CE checklist 
of the FTA, which includes a section on community disruption and environmental justice. When preparing 
an environmental assessment (EA) or environmental impact statement (EIS), the DCTA will, at a minimum, 
integrate into the documents the following components: 
 

i. A description of the low-income and minority population within the study area affected by the 
project, and a discussion of the method used to identify this population (e.g., analysis of Census 
data, minority business directories, direct observation, or a public involvement process). 

ii. A discussion of all adverse effects of the project both during and after construction that would affect 
the identified minority and low-income population. 

iii. A discussion of all positive effects that would affect the identified minority and low-income 
population, such as an improvement in transit service, mobility, or accessibility. 

iv. A description of all mitigation and environmental enhancement actions incorporated into the project 
to address the adverse effects, including, but not limited to, any special features of the relocation 
program that go beyond the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Act and address adverse 
community effects such as separation or cohesion issues; and the replacement of the community 
resources destroyed by the project. 

v. A discussion of the remaining effects, if any, and why further mitigation is not proposed. 

vi. For projects that traverse predominantly minority and/or low-income and predominantly non-
minority and/or non-low-income areas, a comparison of mitigation and environmental enhancement 
actions that affect predominantly low income and/or minority areas with mitigation implemented in 
predominantly nonminority and/or non-low-income areas. When it is determined that there is no 
basis for such a comparison, the document shall describe why that is so. 

 
LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY 
 
DCTA is committed to taking reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to the benefits, services, 
information, and other important portions of their programs and activities for individuals who limited English 
proficiency. DCTA’s commitment to these requirements is outlined in its Limited English Proficiency Plan. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
For all proposed major service and fare changes, capital project and policy initiatives, DCTA will conduct 
public meetings in accordance with its Public Participation Plan. 



Major Service Change Policy

Current:

The following is considered a major service change (unless otherwise 

noted under Exemptions), and will be evaluated in accordance with 

the regulatory requirements set forth in FTA Circular 4702.1B:

• Route Level Service Reduction or Elimination
• Reducing an existing route by more than 25% of weekday route 

revenue miles, or
• Reducing an existing route by more than 25% of Saturday route miles, 

or
• Reducing the number of directional route miles more than 25%, or
• A change in route alignment resulting in 25% or greater variance from 

the existing route alignment, or
• In situations where service would be reduced or eliminated in 

jurisdictions where minority and/or low-income populations exceed the 
transit system service area.

• Route Level Expansion or Addition of a New Route
• Adding a new route, or
• Expansion of an existing route that increases weekday route revenue 

miles by more than 25%, or
• Expansion of an existing route that increases Saturday route revenue 

miles by more than 25%, or
• Expanding the number of route directional miles more than 25%, or
• A change in a route alignment resulting in a 25% or greater variance 

from the existing route alignment.

Proposed:

According to DCTA, a major service change is a 

change that results in one or more of the 

following conditions:

• The establishment or elimination of a fixed bus 

route.

• A substantial geographical alteration on a 

given route of more than 25 percent of its 

revenue miles.

• A modification which causes a change in the 

number of daily revenue hours provided 

equivalent to 25 percent or greater of the 

original daily hours provided.

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • September 2018 1



Disparate Impact Policy

Current:

When conducting a service or fare change equity analysis, the following thresholds will be used to 

determine when a service or fare would have a disparate impact on minority populations:

• Service Level and Service Area Reduction – If the percentage of minority passengers on an 

affected route is greater than the transit system’s minority ridership (within the approximate 

dataset’s margin of error) by transit classification (local, express, community circulators, 

campus routes, etc.).

• Route Level Expansion of Addition of a New Route – If a service level expansion or service area 

expansion is considered that coincides with a reduction in transit service on the same route or 

other routes, and the route(s) considered for service expansion predominantly serves non-

minority and/or non-low-income geographic areas while the route(s) considered for reduction 

predominately serve minority and/or low-income geographic areas, then a disproportionate 

burden may be determined.

A disproportionate burden will be determined if the percentage of minority passengers on an 

affected route considered for service expansion is less than the transit system’s minority 

ridership percentage by transit classification and if the percentage of minority passengers on 

an affected route considered for service reduction is greater than the transit system’s minority 

ridership percentage by transit classification. 

• Fare Increase or Change in Fare Type – If an increase to fare or a change in fare type is 

considered, a disproportionate burden may be determined if the percentage of minority 

passengers using the affected fare is greater than the transit system’s minority ridership 

percentage.

• The determination of the transit system and the route’s minority and/or low-income population 

will be derived from the following data sources: most recently completed statistically valid 

regional on-board and destination survey; most recently completed customer surveys and 

demographic data by census tract.

Proposed:

DCTA establishes that a fare change, major service change, or 

other policy has a disparate impact if the minority populations will 

experience five (5) percent more of the cumulative burden, or 

experience five (5) percent less of the cumulative benefit, relative 

to the non-minority populations. To avoid, minimize, or mitigate 

disparate impacts, DCTA will develop and assess alternatives 

and/or modifications to proposed changes that will result in 

adverse impacts. 

DCTA will implement alternatives or modifications to proposed 

changes to address adverse impacts unless:

• There is substantial legitimate justification for the change, and

• No other alternatives exist that would serve the same legitimate 

objectives but with less disproportionate effects on the basis of 

race, color or national origin.

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • September 2018 2



Disproportionate Burden Policy

Current:

When conducting a service or fare change equity analysis, the following thresholds will be used to determine 

when a service or fare change would have a disproportionate burden on low-income populations:

• Service Level and Service Area Reduction – If the percentage of low-income passengers on an affected route 

is greater than the transit system’s low-income ridership (within the approximate dataset’s margin of error) by 

transit classification (local, express, community circulators, campus routes, etc.).

• Route Level Expansion of Addition of a New Route – If a service level expansion or service area expansion is 

considered that coincides with a reduction in transit service on the same route or other routes, and the 

route(s) considered for service expansion predominantly serves non-minority and/or non-low-income 

geographic areas while the route(s) considered for reduction predominately serve minority and/or low-

income geographic areas, then a disproportionate burden may be determined. 

• A disproportionate burden will be determined if the percentage of low-income passengers on an affected 

route considered for service expansion is less than the transit system’s low-income ridership percentage by 

transit classification and if the percentage of low-income passengers on an affected route considered for 

service reduction is greater than the transit system’s low-income ridership percentage by transit classification. 

• Fare Increase or Change in Fare Type – If an increase to fare or a change in fare type is considered, a 

disproportionate burden may be determined if the percentage of low-income passengers using the affected 

fare is greater than the transit system’s low-income ridership percentage. 

• The determination of the transit system and the route’s minority and/or low-income population will be derived 

from the following data sources: most recently completed statistically valid regional on-board and destination 

survey; most recently completed customer surveys and demographic data by census tract.

Proposed:

DCTA establishes that a fare change, 

major service change, or other policy 

has a disproportionate burden if low-

income populations will experience five 

(5) percent more of the cumulative 

burden, or experience five (5) percent 

less of the cumulative benefit, relative to 

non-low-income populations unless the 

disproportionate effects are mitigated.

DCTA • Open House Meeting Topics • September 2018 3



RM 3(b) 
 

 
 
 
Board of Directors Memo                       October 25, 2018 
Subject:  Approval of Resolution 18-08 Approving Financial Management Policies 
and Annual Investment Policy for FY2019 
 
Background 
DCTA Financial Management Policies are presented to the Finance Committee for review after 
the start of each fiscal year but prior to the start of the next year’s budget process.  Any changes 
proposed by the Finance Committee will be forwarded to the Board for review and final action.    
 
The Investment Policy is included the Financial Management Policies document.  It is the intent 
of DCTA to be in compliance with state and federal law. The Texas Public Funds Investment 
Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, (the “Act”) governs investment of public funds at 
the state level.  The Act requires that the Board of Directors review and adopt the Investment 
Policy annually. 
 
It is the policy of the Denton County Transportation Authority (DCTA) that the administration and 
investment of its funds shall be handled in a manner that maintains the highest public trust. 
Investments shall be made that provide the maximum security of principal invested while meeting 
the daily cash flow needs of DCTA and conforming to all applicable state statutes governing the 
investment of public funds.  While DCTA staff strives to maximize the yield on our investments, 
increasing the market yield-to-maturity is secondary to the requirements for safety and liquidity. 
 
The last adoption by the Board of the DCTA Investment Policy was on October 26, 2017. DCTA 
contracts with First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. (“FSAM”) for investment advisory 
services.  The policy has been reviewed by FSAM to ensure that all the necessary language as 
required by the Act is present in the written DCTA Investment Policy document.  Included for 
your reference is the letter from FSAM confirming their review of the investment policy and 
outlining the recommended changes.  The attached red-lined document incorporates these 
changes as well as slight formatting adjustments for clarification and ease of reading.  No other 
changes are recommended. 
 
In connection with investment transactions conducted between FSAM and DCTA, FSAM has 
provided as required under the Act a certification that they have reviewed the entity’s investment 
policy.  In addition, FSAM has provided to DCTA a copy of its current SEC Form ADV Part II, as 
required by Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation Section 275.204-3.  These 
documents are available in the DCTA Finance Department.   
 
Identified Need 
This action is required to fulfill the legal requirements for an annual review and approval of the 
Investment Policy.   
 
Recommendation 
The Financial Policies were presented to the Finance Committee on October 15, 2018 and are 
forwarded to the Board for adoption. Staff recommends the Board of Directors approve 
Resolution 18-08 to approve the financial management policies and annual investment policy for 
FY2019. 
 
   
 





POLICY REVIEW

October 10, 2018 

Ms. Marisa Perry, CPA 
Chief Financial Officer/VP of Finance 
Denton County Transportation Authority   
1955 Lakeway Drive, Suite 260  
Lewisville, TX 75057 

Dear Marisa: 

As requested, FirstSouthwest Asset Management, Inc. has performed a review of the Denton County Transportation 
Authority (“DCTA”) written investment policy to determine compliance with the Texas Public Funds Investment Act (the 
“Act”), Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256.  Our review was limited in scope, with the primary purpose being to 
evaluate conformity with the Act. We did not seek to ensure that all funds and procedures are addressed in the policy, nor 
have we reviewed compliance with the policy or internal controls of DCTA. Based upon our review, we have reached the 
following conclusion: 

The Texas Legislature did not meet in 2018, so there are no required changes. In order to bring the DCTA 
investment policy in full compliance with the Texas Public Funds Investment Act, we recommend the 
following minor change:      

Amend Section VIII. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS  
C. Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements as defined by the Act, not to exceed 180 90 days to stated 
maturity, provided an executed Master Repurchase Agreement is on file with DCTA and the counterparty bank or primary 
dealer. Flexible repurchase agreements used specifically for capital projects may extend beyond the 180 day stated 
limitation, but shall not exceed the expenditure plan of the projects.  

Rationale: There is actually no stated maturity limit in the Act for Repurchase Agreements, but the statutory limit on 
Reverse Repurchase Agreements is 90 days. The proposed 90-day limit on repurchase agreements makes the two sides 
consistent.        

If you have any questions regarding this policy, please contact me at 1-800-575-3792 or directly at  
(512) 481-2009. 

Sincerely yours, 

Scott McIntyre, CFA 
Managing Director  

300 W. 6th Street 
Suite 1940 
Austin, Texas 78701 

Scott McIntyre 
Managing Director   

512-481-2009  Direct 
800-575-3792  Toll Free 

Scott.mcintyre@hilltopsecurities.com



  

1 

DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-08 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DENTON COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (DCTA) APPROVING THE DCTA FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND UPDATING THE DCTA INVESTMENT POLICY; 
APPOINTING THE INVESTMENT OFFICERS AND AUTHORIZING INVESTMENT 
TRANSACTIONS ON BEHALF OF THE DCTA; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Financial Management Policy assembles the Denton County 
Transportation Authority’s (DCTA) financial policies in one document, which are the tools to 
ensure that DCTA is financially able to meet its immediate and long-term service objectives.  The 
individual policies serve as guidelines for both the financial planning and internal financial 
management of DCTA consistent with provisions of Chapter 460 of the Texas Transportation Code 
and adopted by DCTA Bylaws; and  
 
WHEREAS, DCTA is accountable to its constituents for the use of public dollars.  Resources 
must be wisely used to ensure adequate funding for the operations, services, facilities, and 
infrastructure necessary to meet present and future needs.  These policies help safeguard the fiscal 
stability required to achieve DCTA’s goals and objectives; and 
 
WHEREAS, DCTA Financial Management Policies and the DCTA Investment Policy are 
presented to the DCTA Finance Committee for review after the start of each fiscal year but prior 
to the start of the next year’s budget process.  Any changes proposed by the DCTA Finance 
Committee will be forwarded to the DCTA Board for review and final action; and    
  
WHEREAS, it is the policy of the DCTA that the administration of its funds and the investment 
of those funds shall be handled as its highest public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, investments shall be made in a manner which will provide the maximum security of 
principal invested through limitations and diversification while meeting the daily cash flow needs 
of the DCTA and conforming to all applicable state statutes governing the investment of public 
funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, TEXAS 
GOVERNMENT CODE, the Board of Directors by resolution adopted the DCTA Investment Policy; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2256.005, Tex. Government Code requires the Board of Directors to review 
the DCTA Investment Policy not less than annually and to adopt a resolution stating the review 
has been completed and recording any changes made to either the DCTA Investment Policy or 
investment strategies. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the DCTA finds it to be in the public interest to approve 
and adopt the DCTA Financial Management Policies and the updated DCTA Investment Policy 
attached hereto as Exhibits “A” and “B”; 



  

2 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
DENTON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. The DCTA Financial Management Policies and updated DCTA Investment Policy, 
attached hereto as Exhibits “A” and “B”, be and the same is hereby approved and shall govern the 
financial policies and the investment policies and investment strategies for the DCTA, and shall 
define the authority of the investment officials of the DCTA from and after the effective date of 
this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 2. The Board of Directors of the DCTA has completed its review of the DCTA 
Financial Management Policies and the DCTA Investment Policy and any changes to such policies 
are recorded in Exhibits “A” and “B”, attached hereto. 
 
SECTION 3. The DCTA Chief Financial Officer, Marisa Perry, is hereby designated the 
Investment Officer, and DCTA President, Raymond Suarez, is designated as the Alternate 
Investment Officer.  
 
SECTION 4. The Investment Officer and Alternate Investment Officer are hereby authorized to 
engage in investment transactions on behalf of DCTA. 
 
SECTION 5.  The Investment Officers authorized by this Resolution shall also be authorized to 
approve wire transfers used in the process of investing. 
 
SECTION 6.  The Investment Officers shall designate a liaison/deputy in writing in the event 
circumstances require timely action and the Investment Officers are unavailable. 
 
SECTION 7. That all provisions of the resolutions of the Board of Directors of the DCTA in 
conflict with the provisions of this Resolution be, and the same are hereby, repealed, and all other 
provisions not in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 8. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DENTON 
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY THE 25TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2018. 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
        
Charles Emery, Chairman  
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Dianne Costa, Secretary 



  

3 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

  
Peter G. Smith, General Counsel 
(PGS:10-18-18:TM 103356) 













































CONGRESS 
Congress is now closed until after the 
November elections. Congressional reporters 
like to say that they can “smell the jet fumes 
in the air” from nearby Washington National 
Airport when Congress is close to adjourning 
for a recess and Members are eager to get 
home. 

Carrying forward that metaphor, the fumes 
were strong on Thursday as Senate leaders 
negotiated the approval of a number of 
Judicial Branch and Executive Branch 
nominees. If those talks were successful, 
Senate Majority Leader Mitch McConnell (R-
KY) was prepared to adjourn the chamber 
through the November elections. In order to 
secure swift approval of 15 federal judges and 
several other nominations, McConnell 
successfully sought “unanimous consent” 
from Democrats to cut short debate and go 
straight to a vote on each. 

Once those votes were completed, and the 
nominees were approved (a list can be found 
here: http://bit.ly/2EhSVbD), Senators were 
free to join their House colleagues who had 
adjourned two weeks earlier to campaign. 
While House Democrats feel that they have a 
fighting chance to “flip” at least 23 seats and 
take control of that side of the Capitol, Senate 
Democrats probably face longer odds, even 
though there is only a two-seat difference in 
that chamber. Ten Senate Democrats from 
states won by President Trump in 2016 face 
re-election next month, while only one 
incumbent Republican from a state won by 
Hillary Clinton will face the voters. 

Senator also cleared the 2018 Water 
Resources Development Act (WRDA) for the 
President’s signature this week, maintaining 
the biennial traditional of approving this bill 
that authorizes flood control, navigation, and 
other water-related projects at the Army 
Corps of Engineers (see related story below). 
No matter which party controls Congress post
-November 6, Congress will have to return to
Washington to consider the parts of the FY
2019 budget that were not enacted prior to the

October 1 start of the new fiscal year. A 
number of agencies, including the 
Departments of Transportation, HUD, Justice, 
Homeland Security, State, Agriculture, 
Interior, and EPA, are operating under a 
Continuing Resolution (CR) that keeps 
programs running at or near FY 2018 levels 
through December 7. 

While some of those agencies are hoping for 
a quick resolution on their budgets during the 
post-election “lame duck” session, the 
Departments of Justice and Homeland 
Security are likely to be embroiled in some 
good old-fashioned partisan budget fights this 
winter. President Trump has been saying for 
weeks now that he would veto any budget 
bills that did not include significant funding 
for construction of a wall along the Mexican 
border and Senate Republicans supported that 
position this week. 

McConnell went to far as to say that there 
could be a partial government shutdown in 
December if enough Senate Democrats did 
not support border wall funding. 

WATER RESOURCES 
Senate clears WRDA for President’s 
signature. By a vote of 99-1, the Senate 
approved a Water Resources Development 
Act (WRDA) measure (S 3021) that House 
and Senate negotiators had agreed to last 
month. The House approved the negotiated 
bill in September and President Trump is 
expected to sign it. 

Broadly speaking, the consensus WRDA 
measure will not make major changes to 
Corps civil works programs. It authorizes 
$6.1 billion for 12 new Army Corps of 
Engineers civil works projects, modifies over 
two dozen previously authorized projects, 
authorizes feasibility studies for 12 projects, 
and authorizes the Corps to expedite 
feasibility studies for another three dozen 
projects.   

However, the bill does include one especially 
noteworthy provision: Section 1102, which 

Capital 
Edge 

Volume 24, Issue 29 
October 12, 2018 

Wൺඌඁංඇඍඈඇ Rൾඉඈඋඍ 

Sൾඇൺඍൾ Aൽඃඈඎඋඇඌ Uඇඍංඅ Aൿඍൾඋ Eඅൾർඍංඈඇඌ 

WATER RESOURCES ............... 1 

GRANTS & NOTICES ................ 2 

CONGRESS ................................. 1 

INSIDE: 

_______ 

Washington Report 
_________ 

CapitalEdge 
1212 New York Ave., NW 

Suite 250 
Washington, DC 20005 

(202) 842-4930
Fax: (202) 842-5051 

www.capitaledge.com 

Twitter: 
@CapitalEdgeDC 

RM 6(b) iii



 

calls on the Corps to work with the 
National Academies of Sciences and an 
array of other federal natural resources and 
security agencies to convene a committee 
of experts to carry out a comprehensive 
study on the Corps civil works program, 
including:  
 
• The ability of the Corps to carry out its 

statutory missions and responsibilities,  
• The potential effects of transferring the 

functions of the Corps civil works 
program from the Department of 
Defense, and 

• Improving the Corps project delivery 
processes, including recommendations 
for such improvements, considering: 

• The effect of the annual 
appropriations process on the 
ability of the Corps to 
efficiently secure and carry out 
contracts for water resources 
projects and perform regulatory 
obligations;  

• The effect that the current Corps 
of Engineers leadership and 
geographic structure at the 
division and district levels has 
on its ability to carry out its 
missions in a cost-effective 
manner; and 

• The effect of the frequency of 
rotations of senior leaders of the 
Corps of Engineers and how 
such frequency affects the 
function of the district. 

 
The Committee must submit a report to 
Congress within two years. 
 
Another study in the bill (Section 1204) 
that was popular among a number of 
Members of Congress directs the federal 
General Accountability Office (GAO) to 
conduct a review of the benefit-cost 
procedures of the Corps and White House 
Office of Management and Budget (OMB). 
Within a year, GAO must present Congress 
with a report that includes regulatory and 
legislative recommendations for improving 
the manner in which those two agencies 
conduct cost-benefit analyses for Corps 
projects. Non-federal sponsors of Corps 
projects across the country feel that the 
current procedures for determining benefit-
cost ratios for flood control and other 
Corps projects – which are critical to 
determining if the projects get funded -- do 
not adequately address local factors such 
as low housing costs and the value of 
agricultural land. 
 

2 October 12, 2018          Washington Report 

Nothing highlights congressional 
frustration with the Corps civil works 
program more than the $96 billion 
backlog of Corps civil works projects. 
The oft cited $96 billion figure does not 
reflect the fact many authorized civil 
works projects will never receive 
appropriations and will never be built, so 
much of the backlog is on paper only. 
Nevertheless, it illustrates the size of the 
gap between need and funding.  
 
To address the backlog, the bill directs 
the Corps to identify $4 billion in 
inactive projects that are no longer 
viable for construction. The projects 
identified by the Corps would be de-
authorized absent congressional action to 
disapprove the entire list of projects. In 
addition, to prevent the backlog from 
growing, the bill deauthorizes any 
project it authorizes if the project has not 
received funding or been modified by 
Congress within 10 years. It also require 
the Corps to continue regularly preparing 
a backlog report of all authorized 
projects that have not received funding.  
 
Other provisions of the enacted WRDA 
include: 
♦ Reauthorization of the FEMA Levee 

Safety Initiative through FY 2023, 
♦ Reauthorization of the FEMA Dam 

Safety Program through FY 2023, 
♦ Allowing the Corps to credit towards 

the non-federal match for work 
completed by a non-federal partner on 
a civil works project prior to enactment 
of WRDA-2018,  

♦ Requiring the Corps to prepare a study 
on flood policy within urban areas that 
outlines federal policy constraints to 
address urban flooding, with specific 
reference to policies that outline 
federal and local responsibility (33 
CFR 238/ https://bit.ly/2xhKTJ1), and 

♦ Making it easier for non-federal 
interests to study, construct, and 
advance fund civil works projects. 

The consensus WRDA bill reauthorizes 
the State Drinking Water Revolving 
Loan Fund through FY 2021 at $1.174 
billion in FY 2019 growing to $1.95 
billion in FY 2021. The bill also 
reauthorizes the WIFIA Loan Program at 
$50 million per year through FY 2021. 
 
Other provisions in the bill related to 
municipal utilities include: 
 
Authorizing $500 million over two years 
for sewer overflow and stormwater reuse 
municipal grants, 
Allowing water utilities to send reports 

to customers regarding compliance with 
federal drinking water standards 
electronically, 
Adding reporting about corrosion to 
annual water quality reports,  
Requiring EPA to update water quality 
reporting regulations to improve 
comprehension and accuracy, and 
Creation of a Stormwater Infrastructure 
Funding Task Force that incudes local 
officials to conduct on and develop 
recommendations to improve the 
availability of funding for stormwater 
infrastructure. 
 
A copy of the WRDA agreement is at: 
http://bit.ly/2OSQkZB 
 
GRANTS & NOTICES 
 
Department of Homeland Security 
DHS issued a proposed rulemaking that 
would expand the definition of “public 
charge” to determine immigrant 
eligibility for residency, based on their 
use of public benefits such as Medicare 
Part D, institutionalization for long-term 
care, Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 
Program, and Section 8 public housing. 
Public comments are due December 10: 
https://bit.ly/2pCG21r 
 
National Endowment for the 
Humanities 
NEH is seeking applications for its 
Sustaining Cultural Heritage Collections 
competitive grant program to support 
planning and implementation projects 
that help cultural institutions preserve 
large and diverse holdings of humanities 
materials. Cost sharing is not required. 
Applications are due December 12:  
https://bit.ly/2e1CIHo 
 
Department of Health & Human 
Services 
HHS awarded over $2 billion in FY 
2018 Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program 
grants: 
https://bit.ly/2Eh554z 
 
Department of Housing and Urban 
Development 
HUD awarded $47 million through its 
FY 2018 Housing Counseling Grant 
program: 
http://bit.ly/2Pvb6vu 
 
Department of Transportation 
DOT is requesting public comments for 
suggestions on how to facilitate research 
on the safety of automated vehicles. 
Comments are due November 26: 
https://bit.ly/2CcjBrC 
 

RM 6(b) iii



 

Baseball Tomorrow Fund 
The Baseball Tomorrow Fund is accepting 
applications its program to support 
nonprofit projects for youth baseball or 
softball programs. The average grant 
award is $40,000. Applications are due 
January 1: 
http://bit.ly/1BRxfLh 
 
Public Library Association 
PLA is seeking applications from public 
libraries for its new Promoting Healthy 
Communities: Libraries Connecting You to 
Coverage initiative. Up to 120 awardees 
will receive $300 mini-grants to increase 
communication about the Affordable Care 
Act open enrollment period. Applications 
are due October 21: 
https://bit.ly/2OioJ4y 
 
Walmart Foundation 
The Walmart Foundation is accepting 
applications for the Community Grant 
Program that will provides grants of up to 
$5,000 in the areas of hunger relief and 
healthy eating, health and human services, 
quality of life, education, community and 
economic development, diversity and 
inclusion, public safety, and environmental 
sustainability. Applications are due 
December 31:  
http://bit.ly/2yxxRHP 
 
KidsGardening 
KidsGardening is accepting applications 
for School Garden Packages to create or 
maintain youth gardening programs. A 
total of 25 organizations will receive 
funding from $500 to $2,100. Applications 
are due December 17:   
http://bit.ly/2pMICC3 
 

3 October 12, 2018          Washington Report 

RM 6(b) iii


